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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF GMR RAJAM SOLAR POWER PRIVATE LIMITED
(Formerly Known as GMR Uttar Pradesh Energy Private limited )

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying Standalone IND AS financial statements of GMR Rajam
Solar Power Private Limited (Formerly Known as GMR Uttar Pradesh Energy Private
limited) (“the Company”), which comprises the Balance Sheet as at March 3 1, 2018, and the
Statement of Profit and Loss including statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash
Flow Statement and the statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation and presentation of these IND AS
financial statements that give a true and fair view of the state of affairs (financial position) , Profit or
loss (financial performance including other comprehensive income) ,cash flows and change in equity
of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including
Indian Accounting Standards (IND AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and the companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015, as
amended. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies;
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and -presentation of
the Standalone IND AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these Standalone IND AS financial statements based on
our audit. We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards
and matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and
the Rules made there under. We conducted our audit of the standalone IND AS Financials Statements
in accordance with the Standards on Auditing, issued by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India, as specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement. y

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Standalone IND AS financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal financial control relevant to the Company’s preparation of the Standalone IND-

circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accoun’gilﬁfg/ po

and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Company’s Direﬂf@ )
evaluating the overall presentation of the Standalone IND AS financial statements. |
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Standalone IND AS financial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
therefore said IND AS financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so
requlred and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted
in India, of the state of affairs of the company as at March 31% 2018, its profit including other
comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act,
2013, we give in the Annexure A, a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of
the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. Asrequired by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including statement of Other
Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and the statement of changes in equity dealt
with by this Reports are in agreement with the books of account.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Standalone IND AS financial statements comply with the
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and the companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015 as amended,

(¢) On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2018 and
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31,
2018 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in
“Annexure B” to this report

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the /besmft\
our information and according to the explanations given to us:

a. The company Does not have any pending litigation to be disclosed on its ﬁnancf;
in its financial statements.
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b. The Company did not have any long term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses.

c¢. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.

For GIRISH MURTHY & KUMAR
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s registration number: 0009348
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A.V.SATISH KUMAR
Partner
Membership number: 26526

Bangalore
18th April 2018
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Annexure A as referred to in clause 1 of paragraph on report on other legal and
regulatory requirements of our report of even date.

Re: GMR Rajam Solar Power Private Limited.

i.

ii.

iii.

iv.

vi.

Vii.

a. The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including
quantitative details and situation of Fixed Assets.

b. The Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its fixed assets by which
all the fixed assets verified in a phased manner over a period of three years, which in our
opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the company and the nature of its assets. As
the company has capitalised most of its assets during the year, no physical verification is carried
out during the year.

(¢) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the titles of the immovable property are held
in the name of the company

The nature of company’s operations does not warrant requirement of holding stocks and
therefore had no stocks of finished goods, stores, spare part and raw materials. Thus,
paragraph 3(ii) of the order is not applicable to the company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company
has not granted any secured or unsecured loans to the companies, firms, or other parties listed
in the register maintained under section 189 of the companies Act 2013.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not made any loans or investments. Accordingly requirement under Paragraph 3 (iv) of
the Order is not applicable with respect to the loans and investments made under the
provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Act.

The company has not accepted deposits from the public during the year and as such this
clause is not applicable.

As there is no operation in the company, no cost records are required to be maintained under
sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 for the activities carried out by the
company. Hence reporting under this clause not applicable.

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the company, in our opinion the Company is generally
regular in payment of undisputed statutory dues including Provident Fund, income tax,
Goods and service tax, Customs Duty, Wealth tax and service tax Value added tax, and
cess as applicable with appropriate authorities. We are informed by the company that the
provisions of Employee state insurance scheme, Investor education and protection fund,
and excise duty are not applicable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no und1
payable in respect of provident fund, income tax, customs duty, wealtfﬁ?tagc"
value added tax, cess, goods and service tax and other material statutory
arrears as at 31° March 2018 for a period of more than six months frox
became payable. ;
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(¢) Investor education and protection fund is not applicable to the Company.

viii. Based on our audit procedure and as per the information and explanation given by the
management we are of the opinion that the company has not defaulted in the repayment of
due to the financial institutions and banks.

iX. The Company did not raise any money by way of initial public offer or further offer
(including debt instruments) during the year. The term loan has been applied for the
purpose for which they were obtained.

X. According to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company or
on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the
course of our audit.

Xi. According to the information and explanations given to us, and based on our examination
of records of the Company, the company has paid/provided any managerial remuneration
during the year, as per the provisions of the companies Act,2013

Xii. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company is not a Nidhi company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not
applicable.

Xv. According to the information and explanations given to us and based op our examination
of the records of the Company, the company has not entered into non-cash transactions
with directors or persons connected with him. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order
is not applicable. S
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xvi.  The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank
of India Act 1934.

FOR GIRISH MURTHY & KUMAR
Chartered Accountants

e X o
A V Satish Kumar
Partner.

Membership No: 26526
FRN No0.0009348S

PLACE: Bangalore
DATE:18th April 2018
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Annexure B to Auditors’ Report of even date

Report on the Internal Controls on Financial Reporting under clause (i) of sub-section
(3) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)
Re: GMR Rajam Solar Power Private Limited

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of GMR GMR Rajam Solar
Power Private Limited (“the Company”) as of 31 March 2018 in conjunction with our audit of the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAT’). These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence
to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds
and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the
“Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed
under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of
internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance
Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial
reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all
material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness.
Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effecti
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on~:itﬁ”
Jjudgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of Al
statements, whether due to fraud or error. [ !
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial
reporting,

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting
includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of
the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to
permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition,
use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of eompliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial
reporting were operating effectively as at 31 March 2018, based on the internal control over
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components
of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

FOR GIRISH MURTHY & KUMAR
Chartered Accountants
FRN No0.000934S

g o
A 'V Satish Kumar
Partner.

Membership No: 26526

PLACE: Bangalore
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GMR Rajam Solar Power Private Limited
— (Formerly known as GMR Uttar Pradesh Energy Private Limited)
R Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2018

(Amount in INR}

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
I. ASSETS
1. Non-current assets
{a} Property, Plant and Equipment 3 55,960,345 58,504,039
1B Mon current Tax Assets {Net) L 15,179 -
2. Current assets
{a) Financial Assets
(i} Trade Receivables B 1,448 464 .
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 9 909,638 2,995,986
(1t} Loans 5 1,017 17,531
(v} Other Financial Assats G 5,011 -
{b) Other current assets 7 76,050 911,966
Total 58,416,707 62,429,503
II. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
{a} Eguity Share capital 10 100,000 100,000
{b) Other Equity 11 10,841,332 -6,269,970
LIABILITIES
1.Non-current liabilities
(2) Financial Liabilities
(i) Barrowings 12 39,363,064 58,034,861
(b Deferred Tax Liabilices 16 3.759.805 5.971.503
2. Current liabilities
(2} Financial Liabilities
{1} Borrowings 12 : =
{ii10ther financial liabilities 13 4,209,942 4,235,431
(&Y Other current liabilities 14 223 18,893
{c) Short term Pravisions 15 142,342 338,785
Total 58,416,707 62,429,503
Corporate Infarmation 1
Surmmary of significant accounting policies 2 ’

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

A= per pur Report of even date

For Girish Murthy B Kumar
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 0009345

v Db (-

AW Satish Kumar
Partner
Membership Number : 26526

Place: New Dealhi
Date 18th April, 2018

For and on behalf of the Board of directors of
GMR Rajam Solar Power Private Limited

/};{; |

s Loz

PrabirF-Kumar Majumdar Ranjit Singh Matharoo
Director Director !
DIN:D3519200 DIN:D7617929

Place: New Delhi
Date: 18th April, 2018



GMR Rajam Solar Power Private Limited
- 2 (Formerly known as GMR Uttar Pradesh Energy Private Limited)
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended Mar 31, 2018

{Amount in INR)

REVENUE

Revenue From Operations
Other Income

Total Revenue

EXPENSES

Fimance Caosts

Depreciation and amortization expense
Other Expenses

Total expenses

Profit before exceptional items and tax
Exceptional Items

Profit/(loss) before tax

Tax expense:

Current Tax

Deferred Tax

Profit/(loss) for the period
Other Comprehensive Income
Total Comprehensive Income for the year

Earnings per equity share:
Basic and diluted

Notes For the Year ended | For the Year ended
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
17 8,450,546 B.636,470
7 ] B 153,819 i
8,604,365 8,636,470
20 6,124,245 7,770,708
i9 2,543,650 2,543,597
21 710,813 984,857
9,378,749 11,299,192
(774,384) (2.662,722)
(774,384} (2.662,722)
16
B6.247.749 (6,091,429}
£.473.,366 (B,754,151)
5,473,366 (8,754,151)
22 S47.34 (875.42)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our Report of even date

For Girish Murthy & Kumar
Chartersd Accountants

Fi Reqistration Number: 0009345
K o Oah¢

A V Satish Kumar
Partner
Membership Number : 26526

Place: New Delhi
Date: 1Bth Apnl, 2018

For and on behalf of the Board of directors of
GMR Raqum Solar Power Private Limited

7 X
g

P ir Kumar Majumdar Ranjit Singh Matharoo

Director Director
DIN:03519200 DIN-O7617929

Place: New Delhi
Date: 18th April, 2018



GMR Rajam Solar Power Private Limited
- (Formerly known as GMR Uttar Pradesh Energy Private Limited)
Statement of standalone assets and liabilities
(Amount in INR )

Particulars As at March 31, 2018 As at March 31, 2017
(Audited) {Audited)
1 |ASSETS
a)|Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 55,960,349 58,504,039
MNon Current tax Assets (MNet) 15,179
55,975,528 58,504,039
b) | Current assets
Financial assets
Investments
Trade Receivables 1,448 464
Loans and advances 1,017 17:511
Cash and cash equivalents o09,638 2,985 986
Other financial assets 6,011
Other current assels B, 030 911,966
2,441,179 3,925,463
TOTAL ASSETS (a+b) 58,416,707 62,429,503
2 |EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
a) |Equity
Equity share capital 100,000 100,000
Other equity 10,841 332 | - 6,269,970
Total equity 10,941,332 |- 6,169,970

b} |Non-current liabilities
Financial Liabllities

Borrowings 39,363,004 58,034,861
Deferred Tax Liabilites 3,759,805 5,971,503
43,122,569 64,006,364

c)|Current liabilities
Financial liabilities

Borrowings = :
Other financial liabilities 4,209,942 4,235,431
Other current liabilities 223 18,893
Provisions 142,342 338,785
4,352,506 4,593,109
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES (a+b+c) 58,416,707 62,429,503
&
For Girish Murthy & Kumar Far and on behalf of the Board of directors of

Chartered Accountants

Ay, 200

A V Satish Kumar
Partner

GMR Rajam Solar Power Private Limited )\.

-

B
r Kumar Majumdar Ranjit :Singh Matharoo
rector Birector

Hight Pging iy
45, Palace Road,
Bangakore-1

o

Membership Number : 26 DIN:02519200 DIN: 07617929
Firm Registration Mumber: OO

Place: New Delhi Place: New Delhi

Date: 18th April, 2018 Date: 18th Apnl, 2018



{Amount in INR }

GMHE Rajam Solar Power Private Limited

Statement of Standalone Unaudited / Audited Results for the Quarter and year ended March 31, 2018

. _______ Quarterended | ____ V¥earended
Ea il b= 31i-Mar-18 31-Dec-17 Si-Mar-17 3i-Mar-18 F1-Mar-17
£ (Refer Notes Below) Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited Audited
& |Continuing Operations
1 |Income
a) Revenue from operations
{i} Salesfincome lrom gperations 2,373,034 2,236,088 7,4?!‘].?&9 8,450,545 $r63{1‘4?|:|
(1) Other operating income - -
b} Other Income 29,7649 58,710 = 153,819
Total Income 2,402,803 2,294,798 2,428,209 8,604,365 B,636,470 |
2 |Expenses
{a) O & M Expenses 113,965 111,134 141,373 423,853 515,853
(b) Employes hensfits expensea - - - -
{c) Finance costs 1,435,762 1,709,128 2,074,805 6,124,245 7,770,708
(o) Depreciation and amartisation expenss 627,211 641,149 627,188 2,543,690 2,543 597
(e} Other expenses 81,331 56,356 173,106 286,960 469,033
Total expenses 2,258,270 2,517 772 3,016,472 9 378,749 11,299,192
Profit/ (loss) before exceptional items and tax
3 |expense from continuing operations [(1-2) 144,533 -222.974 -58E,263 -774,384 =2,662,722
4 |Exceptional items -
Profit (l0ss) from continuing operations befora
5 |tax expenses (3 £ 4) 144,533 -222.974 -588.263 -774,384 =2,662,712
& |Tax experndse:
1) Current tax . . - - -
2) Deferred tax -1,489,335 -5,751,992 3,599,188 6,146,521 6,091,429
Profit/ (loss) after tax from continuing
7 |operations (5 £ 6) 1,633,867 5.529,018 -4,187,451 5372137 -8B, 754,151
B |Discontinued Operations
8 |Profit / (Loss) from discontinued operations - -
9 |Tax expense of discontinued operations >
(&) Current tax
(b} Deferred tax =
Profit/ (loss) after tax from discontinued
10 |operations (8 = 9) - = o
11 (Profit/{loss) after tax for respective periods (7 + 1,633,867 5,529,018 -4,187 451 5,372,137 -8,754,151
12 [Other Comprehensive income
A (1) Items that will mot be reclassified to profit or loss) i -
(it} Income tax related to items that will not be
reclassified to profit or loss & i -
A (1) Trems that will be reclassified to profit or loss = - = -
(i} Income tax related to items that will be reclassil - - -
-3



13

14

15

Total other comprehensive income, net of tax

Zor the respective periods

Total comprehensive income for the respective
pericds (11 £ 13) [comprising Profit (loss) and
Other comprehensive income for the respective
periods]

Earnings per equity share (for continuing
operation) :

I} Basic! Diluted before Exceptional items

i) Basicy Diluted after Exceptional ilems

i) Basic/Diluted EPS from continued operations

iv) Basic/Diluted EPS from discontinued operations

1,633,867

163.39
163.35
163.39

5.529.018 -4, 187,451 5,372,137 B, 754,151
552.90 418.75 537.21 (875.42)
-552.90 -418.75 537.21 {875.42)
-552.90 -418.75 a3r.21 875.42

For Girish Murthy & Kumar

Chariered Accountants
Turﬁu ReqwrrahanMS

AV Satish Kumar

Partner

Membership Number @ 26526
Firm Registration Number: 0009345

Place: New Dethi
Date: 18th April, 2018

For and on behall of the Board of directors of

GMR m Solar Bower Private Limited

;:ff’"/
Pral umar Majumdar Ranjit Singh Matham-u
Director Director

DIMN:DISI9200 DIN:OTOL792%

Place: New Delhi
Date: 18th April, 2018




GMR Rajam Solar Pawer Private Limited {formerly known as GMR Uttar Pradesh Energy Private Limited)
Statement of Cash Flows Fer the year ended March 31,2007

[Amodaent in TNR)

3 Farticulars __March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
A Cash Flow from Cperating Activities
Profit ¢ {low) befors tax 1774_3E4) 12662, 7230
Adiustment Lo reconcile prafit befoos Lax to et cash flows
Degregiation and amartisaticn 2,543,690 2.583.507
Finance Cosls 5027 055 5139, 785
Interast adi an EIR vabaaticn of Teom Loan 2r34ra 11,143
Moticnal Inferest on Fair waluaton of Related oart Loan BIR.56] 2825 7HZ
Inarast incams an bank Daposils (1537521 e
Operatinag Profit before Working Capital changes I T 800 £451,.564 |
workinag Capital Adijustments:-
Increasey|Dacreasa) in Other Currant Liabildes (18,613} 12,083
Incraasef(Decreasa) in Other Financiad Liabilites [25,489) [11,183,02%)
IncreasesiDecrease’ in orovisions (156, 444] 237,720
Increase § (Decreasel in other Current Assels 8158917 [LED,041)
{Encreass/lecreass in Finandal Assets (5,011} L40, 482
(Inerease 1 Decnae in Trade Recehvabhs (3,548, 464] =
{Increass )/ Decrees in Loans & Adhvances 15,454
Cach Generstad From Operaliong == 5,807,134 (2,381,183
Les : Direct Tax paid [ net of refunds) (15,179} -
Rt Cash Flow from Ooarating Adtivities (A) 6,881,956 (3,381,163}
B Cash Fiow from Investing Activitees:
Purchase of fixed assets, including intangible assets, VTP and copetal advanpes - (190,777
Irderest incoma on bank Deposits 153,752 -
Met cash flow from investing sctivilies (B) 153,752 [TENEE
¢ |Cash Flaw Tram Financing Activities:
Repayment af Term Loans [#,100,003] -
Froceeds from short term bomowings - 10,457,450
Interest paid e i ) {5129, 7851
et cash fiow [uscd in} in financing activities ( C } 5 & AT 6T
D |Net {decrease ) f In cash and cash equivalents (A + 8 + C) T et a7y T 1 7es714 |
Cash and cash equesalents (Dpening) 2955 9mh 1.330.371
[ Cash and cash equivalents (Cksing) 00630 2.59% 005
| CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS March 31, 2016 March 31, 2007
| Cash on nand
Balances with banks
- an currant accaunts 259,619 2,84% 986
- deposit Sidounts A50,000 -
Total cazh and cash eguivalents 909,638 2,995 986 |
rar Ifiof the Gaard of dipectors of o VA

For Girksh Murthy & K
o mrcd.ﬁmum
-
a N,
v

tish Kumr
Pariner
HMembership Numbers @ 26526
Firm Ragistration Number: O00%345

Fiarz: Mew Dethi
Date: 18Lh Apnl, 2008

GMR g r Pawer Lz-e’d:}/lﬂ/
o =

Ranjit Singh Matharos
Diractar
DIN:OTRI 7529

Plape: New Delhi
Diate: 18th April, 2018



GME Rajam Solar Power Private Limited

(Formerly known as GMR Uttar Pradesh Energy Private Limited)
Additional Disclosure to Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2018

Amendment to Ind AS 7

Effective april 1, 2017, the company adopted the amendment to Ind A% 7, which reguires entities to provide disclasures that enable users of fingncial
statements to evaluate changes in liabilities arising frem financing activities, including both changes arising from cash flows and nan-cash changes,
suggesting inclusian of a recanciliation betwean the opening and closing balances in the balance sheet for Habilities arising Tram financing activities, ta

meet the disciosure réquirement.

The reconciliation is given as below:

Amounts in TNR
Mon Cash Flow Changes
Particulars 1-Apr-17 cash Flows foceign Eair Value 31-Mar-18
E Acquisition Dilution Exchange Chentes
Moments 2
Short Term Borrowindgs £1,700,000 - -14 B45 426 & B854, 574
Term Loan from Banks 36,334 861 -4, 1040, 000 275,600 32,508,490
Total 58,034,861 -4, 100,000 = 273629 = -14, 845,426 39,363,064
For Girish Murthy & Kumar For znd behall of the Baard of directors of %
GMR Salar Power Private Limited * )

yhartened P.m
T
-y "
A W Satish Kumar
Fartner

Membership Number @ 26526
Firm Registration Number: 0009345

Flace: New Delhi
Date: 185th April, 2018

Ranjit Singh Matharopo
Director
DIN:OT617929

Bratis

Diireec
DIN:Q3519200

r Majumdar

Place: Bew Daalhi
Date: 15th Ao, 2018




GMR Rajam Solar Power Private Limited
{Formerly known as GMR Uttar Pradesh Energy Private Limited)

Statement of changes in equity
[Amount in INR)

Attributable to the equity holders of the parcnt
Equity =
Equity share | component of Retained S Total equity
capital Related Party earnings
Loans
As at 01 April 2016 100,000 2,401,490 (773,460) 1,628,030 1,728,030
Prafit for the pericd, additions - B56G,151 {8.754,151) (7,898,000) (7,898,000)
Other comprelansive income - - - - -
At 21 March 2017 100,000 3,257,642 ({9,527,612) (6,269,970} [6,169,970)
Profit for the period/ additions = 11.637.935 5,473,360 17,111,301 17,111,301
Other comprehensive income = -
|At 31 Mar 2018 100,000 14,895,577 (4,054,246) 10,841,332 10,941,332
For Girish Murthy & Kumar For and on behalf of the Board of directors
arbered Accountants ‘)'nf o
fod Ll 0, F
« M ﬁ __..‘.’--’ur.,.-r'""-
W Satish Kumar Prabir Kumar Maiumdar Ranjit Singh Matharoo
Partner Director Director
Membership Number @ 26526 DIN:03515200 DIN:O7B17929

Place: New Dalhi
Date: 18th April, 2018

Place: New [elhi
Date: 18th April, 2018




3 Tanaible Assets

GMR Rajam Solar Power Private Limited
{Formerly known as GMR Uttar Pradesh Energy Private Limited)
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

{Amount in INR}

Plant & Machinary Com puters 1 Total
AL 1st April 2016 60,500,567 695,655 | 61,196,225
Addilons 150, 787 = 190,777
Disposalsf Deletions = = E
Other Adjustments e o
At 31st March 2017 60,691,344 695,658 61,387,002
Additions -
Disposals) Delations -
rther Adjustments . -
At 31st March 2018 60,691,344 695,658 61,387,002
Accumulated Depreciation
; (Amount in INR)
Plant & Machinery | Computers Total |

At 15t April 2016 323,844 | 15,522 339,366
Charge for the peried 2,427,654 | 115,943 2,543,597
Disposals |
Other AdjfTransier | N ST L -
At 21st March 2017 2,751,497 131 465 2,883 963
Charge for the pericd 2,427,740 115,950 2,543,690
|Disposals 5 =
Other AdjfTransier 1
At 31st March 2018 5,179,237 247,416 5,426,653
MNet Block

fAmount in INR)
At 31st March 2008 55,512,107 | 448,747 | 55 960,349
At 315t March 2017 57,939,847 | 564,162 | 58,504,039

4 Tax Asset/f(Liabilitv])

tax)

Advance income tax (net of provision for current

Non Current

Current

__March 31, 2018
15,179

March 31, 2017

__March 31, 2018

March 31, 2017

5 Financial asscts

Loans (Amount in TNR])
MNon Current Current
== SIS ' u ol WA, e March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 |  Mar 31, 2018 March 31. 2017
Carried at amortised cost
Leans to Employess - 1,017 | 17,511
Total - - 1,017 i7,511
6 Other Financial Assets (Amount in INR)
Mon Current Currcnt =
March 31, 2018 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-18 31_—_!-_1:_;&1_.}_’ T
Interest accrued on Bank Deposits - B, 011 -
= = 6,011 -




GMR Rajam Solar Power Private Limited :
(Formerly known as GMR Uttar Pradesh Energy Private Limited)
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended Mar 31, 2018

Other assets

[Amount in INR)

Unbilled Revenue
Prapaid [nsurance
|Total other assets

Mon Current . _ Current
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 Mar 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
- B26,644
FB, 050 85,317
= T 76,050 911,966

Trade receivables

(Amount in INR)

Mar 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Trade receivables
Unsecurad, considered good
Related parties 1,448 462 -
Others
Less: Allowances for doubtful recedvables
Tatal 1,448,464 -

Cash and Cash Eguivalents

{Amount in INR}

Particulars

March 31, 2018

March 31, 2017

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand
Balances with Banks
In current accounts
Depasils with u:'iullml malurily of less Chan
threge months
Total

2,995,986

259,638
G50,000
909,638 2 BE&




GMR Rajam Solar Power Private Limited
{Formerly known as GMR UHtar Pradesh Energy Private Limited)
Motes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

10 Share Capital
[Amount in TNR )

Particulars March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Authorised
50,000 (March 31,2017 @ 50,000} Equity Shares of Rs.10 cach SO0, 000 500,000
s0o.o0n 500,000
Iszued :
10,000 [March 31,2017 - 10,0007 Equity Shanes of R, 10 each 100,000 100,003
100,000 100,000
Subscribed and Pald-up
10,000 (March 31,2017 - 10,0007 Cguity Shares of RS, 10 each 100,003 100 0003
Total 100,000 100000

a. Reconciliation of Shares Outstanding at the beginning and end of the reporting year

Equity Shares March 31, 2018 ] March 31, 2017

In Mumbers Amounts in INR In Mumbers | Am“:::":;' T
Al The= Beginnmng of the year 10,000 100,000 10,000 100,000
Issued during the year = 5 S
Outstanding at the end of the year 10,000 100,000 | in.000 100,000

b. Terms/Rights Attached to eqguity Shares

The company has only ane class of shares having a per value of Rs.10 per share. Each holder of eguily i< entitled to one vole per share. In the cvent of liquidation
of the campany the holdar of equity shares would be entitied to recelve remaining assets of the company after distribution of all preferrential amounts.

. Shares held by holding fulitmate helding company [holding company and for their

March 21, 2018 March 31, 2017
Mame of Sharcholder |
Mao. of Shares held Amaunt e (:Ef;'mg | Amount
GMR Energy Limited {including its nomineas), the immeadiate holding 10,000 100,000 10,000 100,000
COMDAnyY
d. Details of Shareholders holding more than 5% of equity shares in the Compan
f = D 31, J01E March 31, 2017
MName of Sharehalde I ] g i Holding i
4 No. of Shares held || 9% Holding in Class| 0 uﬁ:ar\u 2 H;J';;E i
|GMR Energy Limited (incuding its nominees), the immadiate holding 10,000 100% 10,000.0 100%%
COIMIREY ]
10,000 100%a 10,000 100

AL per records of the Compamy includang its register of share hodders/mambers and other declarations received from share holders regarding beneficial interest,
the above share holding represents bath legal and benefical ownership of shares.

*
45, Palace Roac,f oo (w,
Bangalore-1 s
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GMR Rajam Solar Power Frivate Limited

[Formaerly known a5 GMR Uttar Pradesh Encergy Privatg Limited)
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

Other Equity

{Amount in INR }

Particulars March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Equity component of Related Party Loans

Balance at the beginning of the year 3,257 642 2,401,450

Movement during the year 11,637 935 B56A,151

Balance at the end of the year 14,895 577 3,257,642
Surplus in the statement of profit and loss

Balance at the beginning of the year -9,527,612 -773.4060

Loss/Profit during the year 5,473,366 -8, 754,151

Balance at the end of the year -1,054, 248 -9 527,612
Total 10,841,332 -6,269,970
Borrowings

[Amount in INR )
Non Current Current
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 Mar 31, 2018 March 21, 2017
Secured Borrowings
Term Loans from Banks® 32,508,490 36,334,861 4,100,000 4,100,000
Unsecured Borrowings
TCD froem Holding Company ™= 6,854,574 21,700,000
Total 39,363,064 58,034,861 4,100,000 4,100,000 |

Less: e
Amount I:I.I!-'\.l'.|.|:|.ﬁ?EdI!J nder the head "Other current ol 4,100,000 4,100,000
financial labilities !
Met Amount 39,363,064 S8 034,861 -

#* Term Loan from Banks represent Secured loan taken from Andhra Bank. The loan is repayable in 11 yearly instalments out of which twa

istallmants has been paid Gl March'2018. Applicable rate of interest s 11.95%

*= The Inter Corporate Deposit from Holding Company (GME Energy Limited): MIL rate of interest. Depaosit shall be repayahle after repayment

of Andhra Bank Loan

Other Financial Liabilities

[(Amount in INR }

Other financial liabilities at amortised cost
Current maturities of long tamn borrowings
Non Trade Pavable Group Companies

Mon Trade Pavables

Total

Non Current E‘.urr_eﬂt
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 March 31, 2018 March 31. 2017
4,100,000 4,100,000
2,360 5.678
- : 107582 179,753
% - 4,209,942 4,235,431

Other Liabilitics

(Amount in INR)

Nﬁ"l Current

Current

Statutory liabilities

March 31, 2017 |

018

March 31, 2017

Tax deducted at source 1151 2,496
Orhear Statutory Duss Pavahie 108 | 16,396
Total - - 223 | 18,893 |
|
Provisions
(Amount in INR)
Non Current Current
s March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 |
Provision for Dutstanding Expenses 142,340 338,785
Total = i+ 142,340 338,785




GMR Rajam Salar Power Private Limited

(Formerly known as GMR Uttar Pradesh Energy Private Limited)
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

16 Income Tax

A numerical reconcilizlion betweaen tax expense (income) and the product of accounting profit multiplied by the applicable tax rate(s), disclosing

alzo the basis on which the applicable tax rate(s) is (are) computed

Deferred tax:

{Amount in INR )

i Balance Sheet i
March 31,2018 :: March 31,2017

Deferred tax hability: H :
Borrowinas : -4.036,052 ; 217,742

Statement of profit and loss

March 31,2018

March 31.2017

Andhra Bank Loan i 75,064 ¢ 145 523

Impack af differance belwesen tax depreciation and H H

depreciation charged for the financial reporting 12,450,185 -12,286,459 163,726 §

Total deferred tax liability (A : 16,561,300 1 12649724 163,726 | =
Deferred tax asets: :

Borrowinas : 213,355 217,742 213.355 6,051,429
Andhra Bank Loan : : 0Aa59 i

Brouaht Forward Losses : 12,576,694 | G.460.479 bB.116,215 }

Drisallowances Ufs 434 i o 1 R il 11,446 |

Total deferred tax assets (B) H 12.801.495 : 6 678,222 6,411,475 | ~-6.091.429
Met Deferred Tax (Liability )/ Asset H -3, 759,805 | -5 971,503 | 6,247,749 | 5,091,329

Reconciliations of deferred tax liabilities assets( net)

March 31,2018

March 31,2017

Opening balance 5,971,503 736,225
Tax incomef{expense} during the period reconnised in profil or loss -6,247,749] 6,091,429
Tax income/{expense} during the period recognised in OCT - =
Amounl recognised direclly in equity 4,036,052 -856,151
Deferred taxes acquired in business combinations

Closing balance 3,759,805 5,971,504

Amount recognised directly in eguity

Aggregate current and deferred tax arising in the reporting period and not recognised in
net profit or loss or other comprehensive income but directly debited/ {credited ) to
equity:

|l'-'(.‘|1':l‘rl."l'.| tax on related party loans

March 31,2018

-4,036,052

March 31,2017

856,151

The Company offsets tax assets and Habilities if and only if it has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets and current tax
liabilities and the deferred Lax assels and deferred Lax liabilities relate Lo incorme taxes levied by Lhe same tax authority.

Deferred tax asset has not been recognised on unabsorbed losses on the grounds of grudence in view of the management’s assessment of
future profitability. The Company has recognised delerred Lax asset on unabsorbed depreciation and carried forwand Tosses only to the extent of

deferred tax liahility.

As the timing differences are originating and reversing within the tax holiday period under the provisions of section 80-TA of the IT Act, deferred

tax has not been recognised.,

&’6’
4502, %"

Hight =
ight Podnt fy %
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GMR Rajam Solar Power Privale Limited
(Formerly known as GMR Littar Pradesh Energy Private Limited)
Motes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 21, 2018

Revenue From Operations

Breakun of "Revenue From Operations” in profit and loss is as follows:

{Amount in INR}
Y¥ear Ended Year Ended |
Revenue from operations ~ | March 21, 2018 | M™arch 31, 2017
Sale of Electrical Energy
Grass Genaration 8,536,103 8,709,085
Less: Auxitliary Consumption (85,557 {72,615)
Total 8,450,546 8,636,470
Other Income
(Amount in INR}
Year Ended Year Ended
F __March 31, 2018 March 21, 2017
Interest Income on Bank Deposits 153.752
Sundry Recsiots G7
Total 153,819 | ]
Depreciation and amortization expense
{Amaunt in INR)
Year Ended Year Ended
e = March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Depreciation of tanqible assets 2,543,600 2,543,597
Total 2.54 7

| 2,543,690

Finance Costs

{Amount in INR}

Year Ended

Year Ended

March 31, 2018

March 31, 2017

Infersel fxpens;:

21

Inberest an Term Loan 5218.815% 5.091,068
Inberest on 10D B2E 561 2.629.783
Finance Charaes TG B A0 B5HE
Total 6,124,245 7. 770,708
Other expenses
{Amount in TNR}
Year Ended Year Ended

March 31, 2018

March 31, 2017

DEM Exnenses A23.853 515,853
Rates and Taxes 20,810 31,877
Loao Fees 1,120 1,115
Pavrowenl b Audilors X050 46,075
Security chaross 103,166 141,197
Travelling 14,109 84,9498
Rent 5.810 13,790
Insierance 86,140 100,977
Professional & Consultancy .04 -
Miscellaneous Expenses GHS A0, D00
Int on IT dehvd Pymt 13 4
Int on Service Tax delyd Pymt B P e |
Tatal 710,813 J984.BE7 |
{Amaount in INR}
Year Ended Year Ended

Payment to Auditors (Included in other expenses
abovel

AL Auditor
Audit fee
Limited Beview

_March 31,2018 | March 31 3017 |

23,600 23,075
23.450 23,000
47,050 | 46,075




GMR Rajam Solar Power Private Limited
[Formerly known as GMR Uttar Pradesh Energy Private Limited)

1 Corporate Information and Significant Accounting Policies:

1.1 Corporate Information:

1.2
a)

b}
il

iy

i’}

GMR. Rajam Salar Power Private Limited (Formerly known as GMR Uttar Pradesh Energy Private Limited) is promoted as a
Special Purpose Vehicle (SPV) by GMR Energy Limited, the holding company, to develap and aperate 1 MW Salar Power Plant in
Rajam village , Andhra Pradesh

Infermation an other related party relationships of the Company is provided In Note ne.26

The financial statements were authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of the direclors passed in the Board Meeting
hetd on 18th April, 2018

Significant Accounting Policies

EBasis of preparation

The financial statements are prepared In accordance with Indlan Accounting Standards (Ind AS), under the historical cost
convention on the accrual basis except far certain financial instrumeants which are measured at fair values, the provisions of
Companies Act, 2013 (the "Act’) (to the extent notified). The Ind AS are prescrbed under section 133 of the Act read with Rule
3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and relevant amendment rules issued thereafter,

Accounting policies have been consistently applled except where a3 newly issued accounting standard i initially adopted or a
revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use.

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR)

Summary of significant accounting policies

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IND AS requires the management to make judgments, estimates and
assumpticns that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilitles and the disclosure of contingent
lizbilities, at the end of the reporting period. Although these estimates are based on the management's best knowledge of
current events and actions, wuncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in the culcomes requiring a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets or liabilities In future periods.

Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current) non-current classification. An asset is
treated as current when it is:

a) Expected to be realised or Intended to be sald or caonsumed in normal operating cycle

b) Held primarily for the purpose of trading

c) Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

d) Cash or cash equivalent unless restrictad from being exchanged or wsed to settle a lability for at least twelve months after
the reporting periad

Al other assels are classilied as non-current.,

A liability is treated as current when:

a} It is expected to be settied In normal operating cycle

b} It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

c) It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

d} There is ne unconditional right to defer the settlement of the llability for at least twelve months aftecthe reporting period.

All other lizbilities are classified as non-current.

Defarred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

The cperating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and thelr realisaticn in cash and cash
equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its cperating cycle.

Property, Plant & Equipments:

Freehold land is carried at historical cost. All cther items of property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost including
goverment grants and decommissioning costs less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. Historical cost
inciudes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items such as purchase price, freight, duties, levies.
Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of the plant and equipmeant and borrowing costs for long-term construction projects
if the recognition criteria are met. i

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future econamic benefits associated with the item will flow to the company and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate assets are dEFECDI;FII-SEﬂ when replaced.
All other repairs and maintenance are charged to profit and loss during the reporting period in which they are incurred.

Recognition:

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment shall be recognised as an asset if, and oniy If:
{a} it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the entity; and
(b} the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

On transition to Ind AS, the company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its property, plant and eguipment
recagnised as at April 1, 2015 measured as per the previous GAAP in terms of paragraphs D7AA & D13AA of Ind AS 101 - 'First-
time Adopticn of Inu:!lan Accounting Standards' and use that carrying value as the deemed cost of the property, plant and
equjprnr'n after m ugtmients for dc-:c-mrmssmmng liability {paragraph D21 of Ind AS 101), transactian-cost of long term

i aiaca Road,
Bangalore-1




GMR Rajam Solar Power Private Limited
{Formerly known as GMR Uttar Pradesh Energy Private Limited)

1 Corporate Information and Significant Accounting Policies:

v}

Depreciation and amaortisation

Depreciation on tangible assets dedicated for generation of power covered under CERC tanff regulztions Including common
assets are provided on straight line method (other than BTG of Unit I and II and CTU Transmission Lines), at rates specified by
the Central Electricity Regulatory Commission (Terms and Conditions of Tariff) Regulation,

In respect of BTG of Unit 1 and 1I and CTU Transmission lines, the Company has estimated 40 years as the useful life of the
components as per technical evaluation and accordingly provided depreciation over the remaining useful life of the asset using
Straight Une Method  w.ef April 1, 2016 in terms of the requirement of Schedule 1T of Companies Act 2013,

Depreciation is calculated on a stralghi-line basis over the estmated useful lives of the assets as follows:

Asset Tvpe Estimated useful life (in vears)
Buildings 25
Roads 3
Plant & Machinery - Thermal plant * 40
Plant & Machinery - General 15
Office egquipments 5
Furniture & Fixtures 10
Electrical Equipments 10
Computer equipments 3
Motor cycles g
Motor Cars &

* - Based on technical evaluation, the management believes that the useful lives as given above best represent the pericd over
which management expects Lo use these assets.

Leasehold land froem Government Authorities are amortised as per Central Electricity Regulatory Cammission  at rates specified
by the Central Electricity Regulatory Commission (Terms and Cenditions of Tanff) Regulation.

An item of property, plant and eguipment and any significant part initally recegnised is derecognised upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its use or dispesal. Any gain or loss arising an derecognition of the asset (calculated
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the statement of profit
and loss when the asset is derecognised.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and eguipment are reviewed at each financial
yvear end and adjusted prospectively, IF appropriate.

Further, when each major inspection is performed, IS cost IS recognised in the carrying amount of the item of property, plant
and equipment as a replacement if the recogniticn criteria are satisfied. Machinery spares which are specific te a particular item
of Property , Plant & Equipments and whose use is expected to be irregular are capitalized as Property , Plant & Equipments.

Spare parls are capitalized when Lthey meet the definition of PPE, |.e., when the company intends te use these during mare than
2 perigd of 12 months and having a value of more than 0.50 Million,

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on Initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a
business combination Is thelr fair value at the date of acquisition, Rallowing Initial recognition, Inmngiple assets are carried at
cost less any accumulated amartisation and accumulated impairment losses. Internally generated intangibles, excluding
capitalised development costs, are not capitalised and the related expenditure |s refiected in prafit or loss in the period in which
the expenditure s incurred,

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there |s an
Indication that the intangible asset may be Impaired, The amortisation pericd and the amortisation methad for an intangible
asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life ar the
expacted pattern of consumption af Tuture economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered to modify the amortisation
period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortisathon expense on intangible
assets with finite lives is recognisad in the statement of profit and loss unless such expenditure forms part of carrying value of
another asset.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortised, but are tested for impairment annually, either individually or at
the cash-generating unit level. The assessment of indefinite life Is reviewed annually to determine whether the indefinite life
continues to be supportable. If not, the change in useful life from indefinite to finite is made on a prospective basis,

Gains or lasses arising from derecogniticn of an intangible asset are measured as the difference betwesn the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised. i

A summary aof the policies applied ta the company’s intangible assets is, as follows!:

Intangible assets Useful lives Amortisation method used Internally
generated or acquired

Software licences efinite {& vears) Straight-line basis aver the license period Acouired

2



GMR Rajam Solar Power Private Limited
(Formerly known as GMR Uttar Pradesh Energy Private Limited)

1 Corporate Information and Significant Accounting Policies:

vl

vil

vii)

Borrowing cost

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acguisition, construction or preduction of an asset that necessarily takes a
substantial pericd of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. All other
boerrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur. Borrowing costs consisL of interest and other costs that an
entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences te the extent
regarded as an adjustment to the bormowing cosks.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised where there is a reascnable assurance that the grant will be received and all attached
conditions will be complied with, Where the grant relates to an asset, the cost of the asset shown at gross value and grant there
on s treated as capital grant which is recognised as income in the statement of profit and loss aver the perlod and proportion in
which depreciation is charged. Revenue grants are recegnised in the statement of profit and loss in the same period as Lhe
related cost which they are intended to compensate are accounted for,

Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is {or contzins} a lease s based on the substance of the arrangement at the
inception of the lease. The arrangement 5, or cantains, a lease if fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a
specific asset or assels and the arrangement conveys 2 night ta use the asset or assets, even il thal right is not explicitly
specified in 2n arrangement,

Company as a lessee :
A lease is classified at the inception date as a finance lease or an cperating lease, A lease thal transfers substantially all the
risks and rewards incidental to ownership to the Company is dassified as a finance lease.

Firance leases are capitalised at the commencement of the lease at the inception date Tair value of the leased property or, I
Iower, al the presenl value of the minimum lease payments, Lease payments are apportionad between finance charges and
reduction of the lease liability so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance
charges are recognised in finance costs in the statement of profit and lass, unless they are directly attributable to qualifying
assets, in which case they are capitalized In accordance with the Company's general policy on the berrowing costs.

Contingent rentals are recognised as expenses in the periods in which they are incurrad,

A leased asset is depreciated over the wseful life of the asset. However, if there is no reasonable certainty that the company will
abtain ownership by the end of the lease term, the asset is depreciated over the shorter of the estimated wseful life of the asset
and the lease term.

Operzting lease payments are recognised as an expense in the statement of profit and loss on a2 straight-line basis aver the
lease term unless aither:

a. anather systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern of the user's benefit even if the payments to the lessors
are not on that basls; or

b. the payments to the lessor are structured to increase In line with expected general inflation to compensate for the lessor's
expectad inflationary cost increases. If payments to the lessor vary because of factors other than general inflation, then this
condition is not met.

Company as a lessor :

Leases In which the company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of ?1: asset are classified as
operating leasas, Rental income from operating lease is recognised on a straight-line basis aver the term of the relevant lease,
unless either:

a. another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which wse benefit derived from the leased asset s
diminished, even If the payments to the lesscrs are not on that basis; or

b. the payments to the lessor are structured to increase In line with expected general inflation to compensate for the lessor's
expectad Inflationary cost increases, If payments to the lessor vary according to Tactors other than inflation, then this condition
is not met.

Initial direcl casts incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased
asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental income.

Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in Lhe period in which they are eamed.

Leases are classified as finance leases when substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership transfer fmom the company ta
the lessee. Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recorded as recelvables at the company's net investment in the
leases, Finance lease income is zllocated to accounting periods so as to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the net
Investment autstanding in respect of the lease.

Lands obtained on leases, where there is no reasonable certainty that the Company will obtain ownership by the end of the
lease Lerm shall generally be classified a5 finance leases. The minimum lease payments indude uplront premium paid plus any
annual recurring lease rental which is amortized over the lease term.

Palace Road,
Bangalore-1
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viii} Inventories

ix}

x}

Inventories are valued as follows:

Faw matenals, components, stores and spares are valuad at lower of cost and net realisable value. However, materials and
other items held for wse in the predoection of inventories are nol written down balow cost il the Tinished products in which they
will be incorporated are expected to be sold at or above cost, Cost Is determined on a weighted average basis and includes all
applicable casts in bringing goods to their present locations and candition.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses 2t each reporting date whether there s an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication
exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the company estimates the assel's recoverable amount. An
asset's recoverable amount Is the higher of an asset's or cash generating units’ (CGLs) net selling price and its value in use.
The recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or group of assets, When the carrying amount of an asset or OGl) exceeds its
recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and s written down to Its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining net
selling price, recent market transactions are taken into account, if available. If no such transactions can be identified, an
appropriate valuation madel is used. These calculations are correborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicy
traded companles or other avallable fair value indicators.,

The Campany bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and farecast calculations, which are prepared separately for
each of the Company's CGUs Lo which the individual assels are allocated. These budgets and forecast calculations generally
cover a pericd of bwenty to bwenty five years. For longer perlods, 2 long-term growth rate 15 calculated and applied to project
future cash flows after the twenty fifth year. Te estimate cash flow projections beyend periods covered by the most recent
budgets/forecasts, the Company extrapolates cash flow projections in the budaget using 2 steady or declining growth rate far
subsequent years, unless an increasing rate can be justified. In any case, this growlh rate does not exceed the long-term
average grawth rate for the products, industries, or country or countries In which the entity operates, or for the market in which
the asset Is used.

Impairment losses of continuing operations, Including impatrment on Inventories, are recognised in the statement af profit and
loss, except for properties previously revalued with the revaluation surplus taken to QCI. For such properties, the impairment is
recognised in OCI up to the amount of any previous revaluation surplus. After impairment, depreciation is provided on the
revised carrying amount of Lhe asset over its remaining useful life.

For assets excluding gecdwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there i5 an indication that
previously recognised impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased. If such indication exists, the Company estimates
the asset’s or CGU's recaverable amount. A previously recognised impairment koss is reversad only If there has been a change
in the assumptions wsed to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The
reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrylng
amount that wauld have been determined, net of depreciation, had no Impalrment loss been recognised for the asset in priar
years. Such reversal is recognised in the statement of profit or loss unless the asset is camied at a revalued amount, in which
case, the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase.

Intangible assets with indefinite wseful lives (if available) are tested for impairment annually as at December 31st at the CGU
level, as appropriate, and when drcumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. .

Provisions

Pravisions are recognised when the Company has 2 present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of & past event, it is
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the cbligation and a reliable
estimale can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the Company expects some or all of a provision to be relmbursed,
for example, under an insurance contract, the relmbursement is recognised as a separate assel, but only when the
reimbursement is virtually certain, The expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss net of
any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when
appropriate, the risks specific 1o the liabllity. When discounting Is used, the Increase in the provision due to the passage of time
is recognised as 2 finance cost.
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Decommissioning liability

The Company records a provision for decommissioning costs on power plant projects, where decommissioning costs are
provided at the present value of expected costs ta settle the obligaticn using estmated cash flows and are recognised as part of
the cost of the particular assel. The cash flows are discounted at 3 current pre-tax risk free rate. The unwinding of the discount
is expensed as Incurred and recegnised in the statement of profit and loss as a linance cost. The estimated future costs of
decommissioning are reviewed annually and adjuested as appropriale. Changes In the estimated future costs or in the discaunt
rate applied are added to or deducted from the cost of the assel.

Retirement and other Employee Benefits

All employes benefits payablefavailable within twelve manths of rendering the service are classified as short-term employee
benefits. Benefits such as salaries, wages and bonus ete. are recognised in the statement of profit and loss in the period in
which the employes renders the related service,

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund, pension fund, superannuation fund etc, are defined contribution scheme. The
Company has no obligation, other than the contributlon payable,

The Company reccgnizes contribution payable as expenditure, when an employee renders the related service, If the
contribution payable to the scheme for service received before the reporting date excesds the contribution already paid, the
deficit payable to the scheme is recognized as a liability after deducting the contribution already paid, If the contribution already
paid exceeds the contribution due for services received before the balance sheet date, then excess is recognized 2= an asset to
the extent that the pre-payment will l2ad to, for example. a reduction in future payment or a cash refund.

Accumulated leave, which |5 expected o be utilized within the next 12 months, is treated as short—term employee benefit. The
company measures the expected cost of such absences as the additional amount that it expects to pay as a result of the
unused entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date,

The company treats accumulated leave expected to be carried forward beyond twelve months, as long—term employvee benefit
for measurement purposes. Such long—term compensated absences are provided for based on the actuarial valuation using the
projected unit credic method at the year—end. Actuarial gains/losses are immediately taken to the statement of profit and loss
and are not deferred.

The company presents the accumulated leave as a current lizbility In the balance sheet, to the extent it does not have an
uncenditicnal right to defer Its settlement for 12 months after the reporting date. Where company has the unconditional legal
and contractual right to defer the settierment for a period beyond 12 manths, the same is presented as non—current lability.

Gratuily is a defined benefit scheme. The cost of praviding benefits under the scheme s determined on the basis of actuarial
valuation under projected unit credit (PUC) method.

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts included in net
interest on the net defined benefit Hability and the return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net
defined benefit liability), are recoonised Immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained
eamings through OCI in the period in which they occcur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subseguent
periods.

Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss on the earlier of:
a. The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and
b. The date that the Company recognises ralated restructuring costs.

Met interest is caloulated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or assat. r

The Company recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an expense in the statement of profit
and lass:

a. Service costs comprising curment service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtailments and non-routine

b. Net interest expense ar income.

Financial Instruments - Financial assets

Initial recognition and measuremeant

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through
profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial assel. Purchases or sales of financial
assats that reguire delivery of assets within 2 time frame established by regulztion or convention in the market place (regular
way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the company cemmits to purchase ar sell the asset.

Subsequent measurement

For purposas of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:

a, Debt instruments at amortised cost

b. Debt instruments at fair value threegh other comprehensive income [FYTOCT)

c. Debt Instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss {FVTPL)
d. Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FYTOCT)

¥
Debt instruments at amortised cost: A ‘debt Instrument” is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditlons are
Loy i i
a} The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and
b} Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specifled dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
(SPPI) on the principal amount cutstanding,

This category is the most refevant ta the Company. After initial measurement, such financlal assets are subsequently measured
at amertised cost using the o g interest rate (EIR) method.

Amortised cost is calg W dphe account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees ar gosts thatare anintegral
part of the EIR, The £ il '% luded in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are

—
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Debt instrument at FYTOCI: A 'debt instrument’ is classified as at the FPYTOCT if both of the fofllowing cnteria are met:
a) The objective of the business model s achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets, and
b) The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPI.

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCT category are measured initially as well as al each reporting date at fair value, Fair
value movements are recognized In the other comprehensive incame (OCL). However, the company recognizes interest income,
Impairment losses & reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss In the P&L. On derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or
lass previously recognised in OCT is reclassified from the eqguity to P&L. Interest earned whilst holding FVTOCT debt instrument
is reported as intergst income using the EIR miethod.

Debt instrument at FYTPL: FYTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the
criteria for categarization as at amartized cost or as FVTOCT, is classified as at FYTPL.

In addition, the Company may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets amortized cost or FVTOCT criteria,
as al FVTPL. Howewer, such election is allowed only if doing so reduces or eliminates 3@ measurement or recagnition
Inconsistency (referred to as "accounting mismatch’). The company has not designated any debt instrument as at FYTPL. Debt
instruments incleded within the FWTPL calegary are measured at Fair value with all changes recognized in the PAL.

Equity inwestments: All eguity investments in scope of Tnd AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are
held for trading and cantingent consideration recagnised by an acquirer in a business combination to which Ind AS103 applies
are classified as at FWTPL, For all other equity instruments, the company may make an Irrevocable election to present in other
comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value. The company makes such election on an Instrument-by-
instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable:

I the company decides to classify an equity Instrument as at FVTOCI, then all falr value changes on the instrument, excluding
dividends, are recognized In the OCIL. There is no recycling of the amounts from OCI to PRL, even on sale of investment.
Howewver, the company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recagnized in the Statement
of Profit and Loss.

Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, & part of a financial assel or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognised (I.e. removed from the balance sheel) when:

a. The rights to receive cash flows fram the asset have expired, or

b. The company has transferred its rights te receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an cbligation to pay the received
cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a) the company has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (k) the company has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows fram an asset or has entered Into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither
transferred nar retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the company
continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the company’s continuing invelvement. In that case, the company
also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects
the rights and obligations that the company has retained. s

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original
carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amoeunt of consideration that the company could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets
In accardance with Ind AS 109, the company applies expected credit loss {ECL) model for measurement and recognition of
impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk exposure:

a) Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amartised cost e.g., loans, debt securities, deposits, trade
receivables and bank balance

b} Financial assets that are debt instruments and are measured as at FYyTOCT

c) Lease receivables under Ind AS 17

d} Trade recelvables or any contractual right to receive cash or ancther financial asset that result from transactions that are
within the scope of Ind AS 11 and Ind AS 18

) Loan commitments which are not measured as at FWTPL

f} Financial guarantee contracts which are not measured as at FWTPL

The company fallows ‘simplified approach” for recognition of impairment lass allowance on;
a) Trade receivables or contrack revenue receivables; and
b) All lease receivables resulting from transactions within the scope of Ind AS 17

The application of simpliflied approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises
Impairment foss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition.

For recognition of impairment less on other financial assets and risk exposure, the company determines that whether there has
been a2 significant Increase In the credit risk since initizl recognition. IF credit risk has not increzsed significantly, 12 month ECL

I used to provide for

since fnitial recogid; SRty reverts to recognising impalrment loss allowance based pn 1@ month ECL.

losses resulting from aill possible default events aver th clted life of a financial
partion of the lifetime ECL which results from default .events that are possible within 12
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ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the company In accordance with the contract and all the
cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR. When estimating the cash
flows, an entity is reguired to consider:

&) All contractual terms of the financial instrument (including prepayment, extension, call and similar options) over the expected
life af the financial instrument. However, in rare cases when the expected life of the financial instrument cannot be estimated
reliably, then the entity is required o use the remaining contractual term of the financial instrument

b} Cash Mows [rom the sale of coliateral held er other credit enhancements that are Integral to the contractual terms

As a practical expedient, the Company uses a pravision matrix te determine impairment loss allowance on portfolio of its trade
recelvables, The provision matrix Is based on its historically cbserved default rates cver the expected life of the trade
receivables and is adjusted for forward-looking estimates. AL every reporting date, the historical abserved default rates are
updated and changes in the forward-locking estimates are analysed. On that basis, the Company estimates the following

ECL impairment loss allowance {or reversal) recognized during Lthe period is recognized as income)/ expense in the statement of
prafit and loss (P&L). This amount is reflected under the head "other expenses’ in the PEL. The balance sheet presentation for
various financial instruments is described below:

a) Financial assets measured as at amortised ©ost, contractual revenue receivables and lease receivables: ECL is presented as
an allowance, L.e,, a5 an integral part of the measurement of those assets in the balance sheet, The allowance reduces the net
carrying amount. Until the asset meets write-off criteria, the company does not reduce impairment allowance from the gross
carrying amount.

b} Lean commitments and financial guarantee centracts: ECL Is presented as a provision in the balance sheet, e, as a liability.

c) Debt instruments measured at FVTOCT: Since financial assats are already reflacted at fair value, impairment allowance is not
further reduced from its value. Rather, ECL amount is presented as "accumulated impairment amount” in the OCI.

Far assessing increase in credit risk and Impairment loss, the company combines financial instruments on the basis of shared
credit risk characteristics with the objective of facilitating an analysis that is designed to enable significant Increases in credit
risk ta be identified an a timely basis,

The company does not have any purchased or originated credit-impaired (POCI) financial assets, ie., inancial assets which are
credit impaired on purchase/ origination.

Financial Instruments - Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, leans and
borrowings, payvables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedae, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognizad initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly
attributable transaction costs.

The Company's financlal Habllities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank overdrafts, financial
guarantee contracts and derivative financial instrumenls.

Subsequent measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below: ¥

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss @ Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial
liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities dasignated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held far trading il they are incurred for the purpese of repurchasing in the nezr term. This
category also includes derivative financial Instruments entered Into by the company that are not designated as hedging
instruments in hedge relatlonships as defined by Ind AS 109. Separated embedded dernvatives are also classified as held for
trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments. Gains or lesses on labilities held for trading are recognised
in the profit or foss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value threugh prefit or loss are designated as such at the Initial
date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied. Far liabilitles designated as FYTPL, falr value gains/ losses
attributable to changes In own credit risk are recognized in OCI. These gains/ loss are not subsequently transferred to PEL
However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within eguity. Al other changes in fair value of such liability
are recognised in the statement of profit or loss, The company has not designated any financial liability as at fair value through
profit and loss.

Loans and borrowings : This Is the category most relevant to the company. After initizl recogniticn, Interest-bearing loans
and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR methed. Gains and losses are recognised in profit
ar loss when the fiabilities are derecognised 25 well as through the EIR amortisation process., ;

Amartised cosl is caloulated by taking inte account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees ar costs that are an integral
part of the EIR, The EIR amertization is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss. This category generally
applies ta borrowings.

L
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Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an
existing financial liability is replaced by ancther from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
aexisting lability are substantially madified, such an exchange or medification s treated as the derecognition of the ariginal
liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of
profit ar loss.

Embedded derivatives

An embedded derivative Is a component of a hybrid [combined} instrument that also includes a non-derivative host contract -
with the effect that some of the cash flows of the combined instrument vary in a way similar to a stand-alone derivative, An
embedded derivative causes some or all of the cash flows that otherwise would be required by the contract to be modified
according to a specified interest rate, financial instrument price, commodity price, foreign exchange rate, index of prices or
rates, credit rating or credil index, or cther variable, provided in the case of a non-financial variable that the variable is not
specific to & party to the contract. Reassessment only occurs if there Is elther 2 change in the terms af the contract that
significantly modifies the cash flows that would octherwise be required or a reclassification of a financial asset out of the fair
value through profit or loss.

If the hybrid contract contains & host that is a financial assel within the scope of Ind AS 109, the company does not separate
embedded derivatives. Rather, it applies the classification requirements contained in Ind AS 109 to the entire hybrid contract.
Derivatives embedded in all other host contracts are accounted for as separate dervatives and recorded at fair value i their
economic characteristics and risks are not desely related to those of the host contracts and the host contracts are not held for
trading or designated at fair value though prefit or loss, These embedded derlvatives are measured al fair value with changes in
fair value recognisad in profit ar loss, unless designated as effective hedging instruments.

Reclassification of financial assets

The company determines classification of financial assets and liabilitlies on initial recogniticn. After initial recognition, no
reclassification s made for financial assets which are equity instruments and financial liabilities. For financial assets which are
debt instruments, a reclassification is made cnly If there is & change in the business model for managing Lthose assets. Changes
te the business model are expected to be infrequent. The company's senior management determines change in the business
madel as a result of external or internal changes which are significant to the company's operations. Such changes are evident
to external parties. A change in the business model occurs when the company either beging or ccases to perform an activity
that is significant to ts operations, If the company reclassifies fingncial assets, It applies the reclassification prospectively from
the reclassification date which is the first day of the immediately next reporting period following the change in business model.
The company does not restate any previcusly recognised gains, losses (including impairment gains or losses) ar interest.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial lizbilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the consolidated balance sheet if there is a
currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle en a net basis, to realise
the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Derivative financial instruments

The Company uses denwvative financial instruments, such as Torward corrency contracts, interest rate swaps and forward
commadity contracts, to hedge its forgign currency risks, Interest rate risks and commodity price risks, respectively. Such
derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at falr value on the date on which a derivative contract is entered into
and are subsequently re-measured at fair value. Derivatives are carmed as financial assets when the fair value is pesitive and as
Nnancial liabilities when the fair value is negative, Any gans or losses arising from l:hanges in the faif value of derivatives are
taken directly to profit or loss

xv] Revenue Recognition
2) Revenue from energy units sobd 15 recognised on accrual basis as per the terms of the Power Purchase Agreement (PPA) and
Letter of Intent {LOT}) [collectively hereinafter referred to as ‘the PPAsS'] and tarilf rates determined by CERC. Revenue includes
unbilled revenue accrued up te the end of the accounting year, The revenue 1S alse recognised [/ adjusted towards truing up of
fixed charges and energy charges In terms of CERC tariff regulation 2014-19, wherever applicable.

Revenue from energy units sald on a merchant basis is recognised in accordance with billings made to the customers based on
the units of enargy dellvered and rates agreed with customers. '

b} Revenue fram =sale of infirm power are recognised as per the guidelines of Central Electricity Regulatory Commission, Revenug
prior to date of commercial operation are reduced fram Project cost.

¢} Revenue/charges fram Unscheduled Interchange for the deviation in generation with respect to scheduled units are recognized/
charged at rate natified by CERC from time to time; are adjusted to revenue from sale of energy.

d) Revenus earmed in excess of billings has been included under “other assets” as unbilled revenue and billings in excess of
revenue have been disciesed under “other labllities” as vnearned revenue,

e} Revenue from sale of power is net of prompt payment rebate eligible to the customers.

f} Claims for delayed payment charges and any cther claims, which the Company is entitled to undar the PPAs, are accounted for
in the year of acceptance by the custamers. Similarly Commission, liguidated damages and any other charges are accounted for
in the year of acceptance.

g} Interest is recognized using the time proportion method based on rates implicit in the transaction, Dividend income s accounted
for in the year in which the right to receive the same is established by the reparting date.

L
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Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalent In the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original
maturity of three months ar less, which are subject ta an insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as defined
abowve, net of putstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the Company's cash managemsant.,

Cash dividend and non-cash distribution to equity holders of the parent

The Company recognises a liability to make cash or non-cash distributicns to eguity helders of the parent when the distribution
s authorsed and the distribution is no longer at the discretion of the Company. As per the corporate laws in India, a distribution
15 authorised when it is approved by the shareholders, A corresponding amount s recogrised dirgctly in equity.

Non-cash distributions are measured at the fair value of the assets to be distnbuted with fair value re-measurement recognised
directly in equity.

Upon distribution of non-cash assets, any difference between the carrying amount of the liability and the carrying amount of the
assets distributed is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

uvii) Foreign currencies

awriii

The financial statements are presented in TNR, which is also the company's functional currency.

Transactions In foreiogn currencies are initially recorded by the Company at their respective functional currency spot rates at the
date the transaction first qualifies for recognition. However, for practical reasans, the company uses an average rate if the
average approximates the actual rate at the date of the transaction,

Monetary assets and liabllities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency spot rates of
exchange 2t the reporting date.

Exchange differences arising on settlemant or transiation of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss with the exception

of the following:

- Exchange differences arising on manetary items that forms part of a reporting entity’s net investment in a fareign cperation
are recognised in profit or loss in the separate financial statements of the reporting entity or the individual financial
statemnents of the foreign operation, as appropriate. In the financial statements that include the loreign operation and the
reporting entity (e.g., consclidated financial statements when the foreign operation is & subsidiary), such exchange
differences are recognised initially in OCIL. These exchange differences are reclassified from equity to profit or loss on disposal
of the net investment.

- Exchange differences arising on monetary items that are designated as part of the hedge of the Company’s net investment of
a foreign aperation, These are recognised in OCT until the net investment is disposed of, at which time, the cumulative
amount is reclassified to profit or loss.

- Tax charges and credits attributable to exchange differences on those monetary Items are also recorded in OCL

Hon-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates
at the dates of the initial transactions, Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the date when the fair value s determined, The gain or less arising on translation of non-monetary items
measurad at fair value Is treatad In line with the recegnition of the gain or loss on the change in fair value of the tem.

Fair value measurement

The Comparny measures financial instruments, such as, dervatives at falr value at each balance sheet gate,

Fair value is the price that would be recelved to sall an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The Tair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to
sell the asset or ransfer the liability takes place elther:

a) In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

b)) In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the company.

The fair value of an asset ar a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the
asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their econemic best interast,

A& fair valee measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it te anather market participant that would use the asset in
its highest and best use.

The Campany uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant cbservable inpuls and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.




GMR Rajam Solar Power Private Limited
(Formerly known as GMR Uttar Pradesh Energy Private Limited)

1 Corporate Information and Significant Accounting Policies:

xix}

All assets and labilities for which Tair valee is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the fair
value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level Input that is significant to the fair value measuremant as a
whiole:

Level 1 — Quoted [unadjusted) markel prices in active markels for identical assels or liabilitics.

Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lawest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement s directly or
indirectly abservable,

Level 3 — Waluation technigues for which the lowest level Input that is significant to the fair value measurement is

unohservahle.
The Company's management determines the policies and procedures for bolh recurring fair value measurement, such as

derivative instruments and unquoted financial assets measured at falr value, and for non-recurring mcasurement, such as
assets held for distribution in discontinued operations.

External valuers are invalved for valuation of significant assets, such as properties and unquated financial assets, and significant
liabilities, such as contingent consideratien. Invelvement of external valuers is decided upon annually by the management after
discussion. Selection criteria include market knowledge, reputation, independence and whether professional standards are
maintained. Valuers are normally rotated every five years. The management decides, after discussions with the company’s
external valuers, which valuation techniquas and inputs te use for each case.

At each reporting date, the management anzlyses the mavements in the values of assets and liabilities which are required to be
remeasured or re-assessed as per the Company’s accounting policies. For this analysis, the management verifies the major
inputs applied in the latest valualion by agre2ing the information in the valuation computation te contracts and other relevant
documents.

The management, in conjunction with the Company's external valuers, also compares the changea in the fair value of each asset
and liability with relevant external sources te determine whether the change s reasonable,

For the purpese of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the
nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

This note summarises accounting policy far falr value. Other fair value related disclosures are given In the relevant notes.

a3} Disclosures for valuation methods, significant estimates and assumptions
b) Contmgent consideration

c) Quantitative disclasures of fair value measurement hierarchy

d} Investment in unguoted equity shares (discontinued operations)

&} Property, plant and equipment under revaluation model

f) Investment properties

g} Financial instruments {including these carried at amortised cost)

h} Non-cash distribution

Taxes on income

Current income tax

Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax,

Current Income £ax is measurad at the amount expected te be paid to the tax authorities in accordance with the Income Tax
Act, 1961

Current income tax assets and lizbilittes are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
guthorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the
reporting date.

Current income tax relating to Items recognised outside profit or loss s recognised outside profit or loss (either in other
comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI
or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluasles positions taken in the tax returns with respect Lo situations in which
applicable tax regulations are subject to Interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Hight
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GMR Rajam Solar Power Private Limited
{Formerly known as GMR Uttar Pradesh Energy Private Limited}

1 Corporate Information and Significant Accounting Policies:

Deferred tax
Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and lizbilities and
their carrying amounts Tor finandial reporting purpeses at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised Tor all taxable temporary differences, except:
a) When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recogniticn of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that s nat
a business combinaticn and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss

b} In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests in joint
ventures, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary dilferences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, tha carry forward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it s probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry lorward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be
utilised, except:

a) When the deferred tax asset relating to the dedoctible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of an asset or
liability In a transaction that is nat & business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss

b} In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests in joint
venturas, deferred tax assets are recognised anly to the extent that it Is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in
the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised to the extent
that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

The carrying ameunt of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no loenger
prebable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised, Unrecognised
deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that
future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax assets to be recovered

Delferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is
realised or the lizbility is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the
reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised cutside profit or loss is recognised culside profit or loss (elther in other comprehensive
incoma or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in corralation ta the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in
equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax labilites are offsel IT 2 legally enforceable right exists to sat off curment tax assets against
current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate ta the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Tax benefits acquired as part of 8 business combination, but not satisfying the criteria for separate recognition at that date, are
recagnised subsequently if new information about facts and drecumstances change. Acquired deferred Ltax benefits recognised
within the measurement peried reduce goodwill related to that acquisition if they result from new information obtained about
facts and circumstances existing at the acquisition date. If the carrying amount of goodwill is zero, any remaining deferred tax
benefits are recognised in OCIY capital reserve depending on the principle explained for bargain purchase gains. All other
acquired tax benefits realised are recognised in profit or loss.

Earninas per share ¥

Baslc earnings per equity share is compuled by dividing the nel prefit attributable to the equity holders of the company by the
weighted average number of equity chares outstanding during the period. Diluted earnings per equity share is computed by
dividing the net profit attributable to the equity holders of the company by the weighted average number of equity shares
cansidered for deriving basic earnings per equity share and also the weighted average number of equity shares that could have
been iszued wpon conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. The dilutive potential equity shares are adjusted for the
praceeds receivable had the equity shares been actually issued at fair value {i.e. the average market value of the outstanding
equity shares). Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed convertad as of the beginning of the pericd, unless issued at a later
date. Dilutive potential equity shares are determined independently for each period presented.

The number of equity shares and potentially dilutive equity shares are adjusted retrospectively for all periods presented for any
share splits and bonus shares issues including for changes effected prior to the approval of the financial statements by the
Board of Directors.
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GMR Rajam Solar Power Private Limibed
[(Formerly known as GMR Uttar Pradesh Energy Private Limited)
Motes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

Calculation of Earning par share (EPS):

Basic EPS amounts are calodated by dinidang the prafit for the year attributable to eguily shereholders of the Company By the weighted average number

ol Equity shares outstanding during the year, There is no dilutive potential ordinary shares as at March 31,2018 and March 31, 2017, Thus, diluted EPS
equals hasic EPS.

The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic f diluted EPS computaticns:

Particulars March 31. 2018 March 31, 2017

& Mominal value of Eguity shares [In Rupees per share) in

b. Total No. of Equity Shares gutstanding at the begmning of the year 10,000 10.000
c. Add: Shares allotted durng the year 2 -
d. Tatal Mo. of Equity Shares cutstanding at the =ad af the year 10.000 10.003
. Weighted average nurnber of Eguilty shares gl e vear end (in Nos) 10,000 10,000
. Predit attributable to eguity hokders of the Company for basic earnings [(Rupees 5372137 (8, 754,151)
g, Basic/Diluted Earnin share of Be 10F- each (i Bs.} [(F/{g]] 537.21 (875 427

Commitments and Continaencies

There gre o commibments and continaent liabifities as on March 31,2018 (March 3120171 Nill

Emploves Banefits

As there are no employess, the company has not defermaned Uhe labilily for gratuily and lang Lerm compensated absences in accordance with revised

INDF AS 18,

Ooerating Lease
The Company has not entered into certain cancellable operating lease agreements mainky for office premises, space of car parking and furniture hire. The
bmase rentals considerad is shown under the statement of profit or loss for the period as pes the agreement are a5 follows:

Particulars March 31,2018 March 31,2017

Lesse Rentals under cancelable leages 5,810 13,780

Lease Rentals under non-cancelable leases

Rclated Party Disclosures:

a. Mames of related parties and related party relationshio:

GMR Energy Limited

Enterprises that control the company GMR Generation Assets Limited
GMR Infrastructure Lmited

Ultimate holding campany GMR Enterprisas Privale Limited
Fellow Subsidiaries GMA Sports Private Limted

GMR League Games Private Limited

GMR Infratech Private Limited

Cadence Enterprises Frivate Limited

PHL Infrastructure Finance Company Private Limeted
Vigay Mivas Real Estates Private. Limited '
Fabcity Properties Private Liomited

Eondampela Properties Private Limiled

Hyderabad Jabilli Properties Private Limited

Leora Real Estates Private Limited

Pashupati Artex Agencies Private Limited

Ravivaima Realty Private Limited

GMA Splar Energy Private Limited

Aajam Enterprises Private Limited

Grandhi Enterprises Prvate Limibed

Ideaspace Solutions Private Limikbed

Mational SEZ Infra Services Private Limited
Eakinada Refinery and Pebrochemicals Private Limited
Corporate Infrastructure Services Private Limited
GMR Bannerghatta Properties Private Limited

Kirthi Tembers Private Limited

Hight Painl [V
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AMG Healthcare Destination Private Limited

GMR Holding (Makta) Limiled

GMR Intrastructure (Maltz) Limited

GMA Holdings {Overseas) Limited

GMR Haldings { Mawritiug] Limited

Crossridge Tnvestments Limiked

Imterzone Capital Limited

GMR Holdings Overseas {Singapore] Pta Limsted

GMR Business & Consultancy LLP

GMR Fower Corporation Limited (GRCL)

GMA Vemacgiri Power Generation Limited [GVPGL)

GMR {Badrinath] Hydro Power Generatien Private Limited
MR Mining & Enery Frivate Limited [(GMEL)

GMA Kamalanga Encrgy Limited {GREL)

Himtal Hydro Power Comgany Private Limited {HHPPL}
GME Energy {Mauritius) Limited {GEML)

GME Lion Energy Limited (GLEL)

GMA Upper Kamali Hychopower Limited [GUEKPL)

GEMA Energy Tradmg Limited (GETL)

GME Consulmng Services Pivate Limiged (GOSFL)

GMA Coastal Cnergy Private Limited (GCEPL)

GMR Bajoedi Holi Hydropower Priviate Limited {GEHHFL]
GME Londa Hydropawser Private Limited (GLHPRL)

GMR Kakinada Energy Privaste Limited {GKEPL)

GMR Chhaltisgach Energy Limited {GCHERL)

GMA Enevgy {Cyprus) Limited (GECL)

GME Energy (Metherands) B, (GEMNEY)

PT Dwikarya Sejati Utrna [PTDSW)

FT Duka Sarana Intemusa (FTDET)

PT Barasentosa Lestan (PTBSL)

SIK Powergen Limated {S1K)]

FT Unsoco (PT)

GME Warora Energy Limited [ Formerly EMCO Energy
Lirmitad}

[ndo Tausch Trading DECC (ITTD)

GME Maharashira Energy Limitod [GREL]

GMit Rajam Solar Power Private Limited {formerly known
as GMR Uttar Pradesh Energy Private Limited {GUPEPL)
GMA Hosur Energy Limibad (GHOEL)

GMRE Gugarat Solar Fower Private Limited [(GRSPPL)
Kamali Transmession Caompany Private Limited [KTCPL)
Marsyanqdi Transmission Company Frivabe Limited [MTCPL)
GMR Indo-Mepal Energy Links Limited {GINELL)

GMR Indo-Nepal Power Corridors Limsited [(GINPCL)

GME Genco Assets Limited (faemerly known as GMR Hosur
Energy Limited [GHOEL)}

Aravall Transmission Service Company Limited (ATSCL)
Maru Transmission Service Company Limited [MTSCL)
GMR Energy Projects [Maurbus] Limited (GEFMLY

GME Infrastructure {Singapece] Pte Limited {GISPL)
GMR Coal Respurces Pte Limited (GCRPL)

GMR Power Infra Limited (GPIL)

GME Highways Limited [GMEHL)

GMR Tambaram Tmdivanam Expressways Limated {GTTERL)
GMR Tuni Anakapalli Expressways Limited (GTAEPL)
GME ambala Chandigarh Expressways Private Limited
[GACEPL)

GMR Pochanpalli Expressways Limdted [GPEPL)

GMR Hyderabad Vijayawada Expressways Privabe Limited
[GHVEPL)

GMR Chennai Outer Ring Boad Privabe Limited (GCORRPL)
GMR Kishangarh Udaiper shmedabad Expressways Limited
[GKLIAFLY

GHR Highways Projects Privabe Limited {GHPPL)

GMR Hyderabad [ntematzonal Alrport Limited (GHIAL)
Gateways for Indsy Airports Private Limited (GFLAL)
Hypderabad Airpart Security Services Limited (HASSL)
GMR Hyderabad Alrport Resouroe Management Limited
(GHARML)

GHMR Hyderabad Aerotropalis Limited (HAPL)

GMR Hyderabad Aviation SEZ Limited {GHASL)

GMR Aprospace Enginesring Limited {GAEL (Tfoemesly knawn
as MAS GMR Aerospace Engineenng Company Limited)
GMR Agro Technic Limited {(GATL) (formary known as
MAS GMR Aera Technic Limited (MGATL)}

Hyderabasd Duly Frée Retail Limited [HDFRL)

GME Alrport Developers Limited [GADL)

GADL Intemational Limited (GADLIL)

GADL {Mauritive] Limited [(GADLMLY

=

o




GMR Hotels and Resorts Limited (GHRL)

GME Hyderabad Airport Power Distribution Limmited
Delhi International Ajrport Private Limited (DIAL)
Delhi serctropolis Private Limibed (DAPL)

Deelhi Duty Frese Services Private Limited (DDFS)
Daxlhi Asrport Parking Services Private Limited (DAPSL)
GMRE hirports Limited {GAL)

GMR Asrport: Global Limeted {GAGL)

GME furports (Mauritius) Lisited {GALE)

GME Aviation Private Limited (GAPL)

Raxis Security Services Limited {Raxae)

GMR Krishnagiri SEZ Limited [GKSEZ)

Advika Properties Private Limited (APPL)

Aklima Properties Pivate Limited (AKPPL)
Armartya Properties Private Limited {AMPPL)
Baruni Progerties Private Limited (BPPL)
Bougainvillea Properties Private Limited (BOFPL)
Camelia Properties Private Limeted {CPPL)
Deepesh Praparties Private Limited (DPPL)

Fila Properties Private Limited {FPRL)

Gerbera Properties Private Limisted {GPL)
Lakshiml Priva Froperties Private Limited (LPPPL)
Honeysuckle Properties Private Limited (HPPL)
I[dika Properties Private Limited (TFFL)
Krishnapriya Properties Private Limited (KPPL)
Larkspur Progerties Private Limibad (LAPPL)
Madira Propertics Private Limited (NPPL)
Padrmapriva Properties Private Limited (PAFPL)
Frakalpa Propertses Frivabe Limited (PPPL)
Pernpchandra Properties Private Limited (PUPFL]
Shreysdita Properties Private Limeted (SPRL]
Pranesh Properties Private Limited (PRPPL)
Srewpa Properties Private Limeted {SRPPL)
Radhapriya Properties Private Limited (REPL)
Asteria Real Estates Private Limited (AREPL)
GMR Hosur Tndustrial City Private Limibed (GHICL)
Hamitha Real Estates Private Limited (NREPL)
Homey Flower Estates Private Limited (HFEPL)
GMR Hosur EMC Limited {GHEMCL)

GME SEL and Part Holdmgs Limited (GSFHL)
East Godavars Pawer Distribution Company Private Limited
Suzone Properties Private Limited {SUPPL)

GMR tilities Private Limited [(GUPL)

LiHimm Progerties Private Limited (LPPL)

GMR Corporate Aftairs Private Limited (GOAPL)
Dhruel Securities Private Limited (DSPL)
Larkspur Properties Private Limited (LAPFL)

GMR Business Process and Services Private Limited (GEPSPL)
GMR Infrastructure {Mauritius) Limited {GIML) +
GMR Infrastructure  {Cypres) Limited (GICL)
GMR Infrastructure Overseas Limibed (GIOL)
GMR Infrastructure (UK) Limited (GIUL)

GMR Infrastructure {Global) Limited (GIGL)

GMR Energy {Global) Limited {GEGL)

Kakinada Gateway Fort Limited (KGPL)

GMR Goa International Airpart Limited (GGIAL)
GMR SEZ Infra Serdces Limited (GSISL)

GMR Infrastructure (Cwverseas) Lamisted {GIOL)
GMR Infra Devclopers Limited {GIDL)

GMR Infrastructwre Cyprus) Limited (GICL)
GMR Infrastructere Overseas Limited (GIOL)
GMR Infrastructure (LK) Limited [GIUL)

GMR Infrastructure (Gobal) Limited (GIGL)

GMR Energy [Global) Limited [GEGL)

Kakinada Gateway Port Limited (KGPL)

GME Goa Internations Airport Limited (GGIAL)
GMR SEZ Infra Services Limited (GSISL)

GMR Infrastructure [Overseas) Limited {GI0OL)
GMR Infra Developers Limited (GIDL)

Mr.Ranjit Singh Matharao, Directos

|
KoM anagemmIL e ceo g Mr, Prabar Kumar Hal;umdhnr. Dhrector

_ : { GME Varatakshmi Foundation [GWF]
Enterprises where key management personnal & thair relatives GMR Varalakshmi DAY Public Schoal [GYDES]
aralixksh ch

ignificant infl
ELgDIAnL i O GMI Eamity Eund Trust [GEFT]
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b. Detils of the transactions are as follows : =
[AmL in Rupees]

Particulars March 31,2018 March 31,2017
a. Sala of Power
-GME Varalakshmi Foundation 5.847,077F 5.B98.537
-GMANT Care Hosoital 2.603.46% 2.737.934
b. Rent
«GMA Family Fund Trost 5.310 13.790

.,  Looo fee & trade mark fies
GME Enterorises Private Lirmited 1120 1,115

d. Netional Interast expense on ICD
GMRE Energy Limited 828,561 2,629 783

* - Redated Party Transactons aiven adbove e as identilbed by the Manaoement.

c. Closing balances with the above related parties:

{ Amt. in Rupces)
Particulars March 31,2018 March 31.2017
1) GMR Energy Limited (Liability) =T
al Share Capital 10000 100,000
b} ICD Received from GEL 6.B54.574 21,700,000
ciEqguity Camponent of Refated party Loan-GEL 14 BOS.57 0 3757 6al
IT) GMR Family Fund Trust (Liability)
a) Rent Payable 2.360 3450
TII) GMR Enterprises Private Limited (Liabil
a) Logo fee payable = 2.228

IV} GMR Varalakshmi Foundation (Asset)
2] Recenvable towards Sale of Fower 1,037,282 -

V) GMRVF Care Hospital [Asset)
2} Recenable towards Sale of Fower 411,181 -

Panding Litigations:
Thex Company does not have any pending litigatsons which would mmpact its linancial position
Foreseeable losses:

The Company did not have any long-term contracks including derivative contracts for which there were any matenal foresaaable lpsses.

There are no micre and small enterprses to which the company owes dues which are outstanding for more than 45 days as at March 31, 201E and March
31 2017. This mformation a3 required to be discosed under the Micro Small and Medinmm Enterprises Development Act 2006 has been determined to the
axtent such parties have been identfied on the basis of information available with the company.,

Segment Reporting:

The cormpany i engaged primarily in the business of setting and running of Power Plants. As the basic nature of the acivitkes is governad by the sama
set of risk and returns these have been grouped as a smgle busmess segment, Accordingly separate prmary and secondany sagment reporting
disclosures as envisaged in indian Accounting Standard [Ind A5S-108} an Segmental Repocting issued by thie ICAT are nat applicable ta the present
activities of the company 7

Income tax expenses in the statement of profit and loss consist of the following:
{Amount in INR)

March 31,2018 March 31, 2017
Tax exXpanses
[a) Current ta =
(B} Adjustments af tax relating to earfier periods = -
{0 MAT credit entithement - E
(e} Diferred tax expence [ {credit) 56,247 745 6,061,429
Total taxes 5,247,749 6,001,429
Reconciliation of taxes to the = e
March 31,2018 March 31, 2017
Profit befare tax (774,384) (2,662,722)
Applicable t@x rates in Inda (% Aate) 25.75% 29.87%
Computed tax charge -1599,404 =795,355
Tax effect of items that are not taxable in determining taxable soolil:
{b) Unutifized thx Lasses and Depreciation 5,916,611 -1,5%4104,519
(b} Others-Ind AS Adpustments =213,355
Tax effect of items that are not dedectible in determining taxabde orofit:
fal amowent disallowed -B1,906 2,741 E74
(b} Others-Ind AS Adjustments - 6.0‘}!,:1-2'-1
feh EMect ol Depreciation 163,726 -
Tax expensd as rapartad -6,247,749 6,091,429
%
Hight Poing py | #
*
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GMR Rajam Solar Power Private Limited
{Formerly known as GMR Uttar Pradesh Energy Private Limited)
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

32 Disclosures on Financial instruments

This sechion gives an overview of the ssgnilicance of finanoal mstruments for the Group and provedes additronal information on balance sheet
items that contain financial instruments.

The details of significant accounting policies, including the criberia for recognition, the basis of measuremant and the basis on which income and

Bxpenses are recagnisad in respect of each class of financial asset, financial liability and equity instrument are disclosed in accounting policies,
to the financial slatemeants.

{a) Financial assets and liabilities

The following tables presents the carrving value and fair value of each category of linancial assets and liabilities as at March 31, 2018 and March
3r, 2017,

As at March 31, 2018

(R=.
Particulars Fair valuae Derivative Amortised Taotal Total R,
through instruments cost Carrying value Fair value

consolidated | mot in hedging

statement of | relationship

profit or loss
Financial assets
(i) Lowns = = 1017 1.017 1.017
(i1} Trade recaivables = - 1448, 464 1.448.454 1448, 464
Liii] Cash and cash egquivalents - - 909,638 a9 638 a0h.&38
{iv} Other financial assets e [ | St i s 1 1| NI - a 6.011
Total = = 2,365,129 2,365,129 2,365,129
Financial liabilities
(1) Borrowinas - . 39.363.064 39.363.064 39,363.064
fit} Cther financial liabilities = - 4,209 042 4 709,542 4 200 o8F
Total = - - 43,573,006 | 43,573,006 43,573,006
A< at March 31, 2017

(Rs.]
Particulars Fair value Derivative Amaortised Total Total
through instruments cost Carrying value Fair value

consolidated |not in hedging

statement of | relationship

profit or loss
Financial assets
{1} Loans = L 17,511 17511 17.511
(il Cash and cash equivalents - = 2,995 986 2,995 586 | 2,995,985
Total = = 2,013,497 3013497 | 3013497
Financial liabilities
(1} Borrowinags - 58.034.861 SB.034.851 58,034,861
(i1 Other financial liabilities - = 4,235 431 4 735431 4,235,431
Total = = 62,270,292 E;]!_,Z_?’E,:Z_SZ_ 62,270,292

@k




GMR Rajam Solar Power Private Limited
(Formerly known as GMR Uttar Pradesh Energy Private Limited)
Motes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

33 Financial risk management abjectives and policies

In the course of its business, the Company is exposad primarily to fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates, interest rates, equity
prices, liguidity and credit risk, which may adversely impact the fair value of its financial instruments. The Company has a risk
management policy which not only covers the Foreign eschange risks but also other risks associabed with the financial assets and liabilities
such as interest rate risks and credit risks. The risk managament policy is approved by the Board of Directors. The risk management
framework aims Lo:

Market risk

{a) Market risk- Interest rabe risk

Interest rate risk is the rsk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial insbrumant will flucteate because of changes in market
interest rates, The Company's exposure o the risk of changes in market interest rabes relates primarily to the Company's long-term and
short-term debt obligations with floating interest rabes,

The Company manages its interast rate nsk by having a balanced portfolio of fixed and vanable rate loans and borrowings.

(&) Market risk- Foreign currency risk

The fuctuation in 'furr:igr‘n currency exchange rates may have potential impact on the consolidated statement of profit and loss and equity,
where any transaction references more than one cummency or where assets/liabilities are denominated im a currency other than the
functional currency of the respective consolidated entibes. Considering the countries and economic enviranment in which the Company
operates, its operations are subject to risks arising fram Nuctuatiens in exchange rates in those countries,

The: Company has enterad into certain denvative contracts which are not designated as hedge.

Credit risk |

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument Gr custemer contract, leading to a financial
loss. Fimamcial instruments that are subject to credit risk and concentration thereof principally consist of trade receivables, loans
receivables, investments, cash and cash equivalents, derivatives and financial guarantees provided by the Company

The carryling value of financial assets represents the maximum credit risk. The maximum exposure to credit nsk was Rs. 23,65,129/- and
Rs. 30,13,497/- &5 at March 31, 2018 and March 31, 2017 respectively, being the total carrying value of trade receivables, balances with
bank, bank deposits, investments and other financial assets,

Custorner credit risk is managad by each business unit subject to the Company’s established policy, procedures and control relating to
custamer credit risk management, An impaimment analysis is performed al each reporting date on an individeal basis for major clients. The
Company does not hold collateral as security.

With respect to trade receivables / unbilled revenue, the Company has constituted the terms to review the recelvables on a perodic basis
and o take necessary mitigations, wherever reguired. The Company creates allowance for all unsecured recoivables based on lifetime
expected credit boss based on a provision matrix. The provision matrix takes into account historical credit loss expenence and is adjusted
for forward looking information. The expected credit loss allowance s based on the ageing of the receivables that are due and the rates
used in the provision mabrix.

Credit risk from batances with bank and financial Institutions is managed by the Company's treasury departmentin accordance with the
Company's policy. Investments of surplus funds are made only with approved counterparties and within credit limits assigned to each
counterparty. The limits are set to minimise the concentration of risks and therefore mitigate financial loss throwgh counterparty's potential
failure to make payments.

In respect of financial guarantees provided by the Company to banks and linancial institutions, the maximum exposure which the Company
Is exposed to is the maximum amount which the Company would have to pay if the guarantes is called upon. Based on the expectation at
the end of the reporting period, the Company considers that it s more likely than not that such an amount will nat be payable under the
quarantees provided.




Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk refers to the risk that the Company cannol meet its linancial ebligations. The objective of liguidity risk management is to
maintain sufficient liguidity and ensure that funds are available for use as per reguirements. The Company has obtained fund and non-fund
based working capital fines from various banks. Furthermore, the Company has access to funds from debt markets through convertible
debentures, nan-convertible debentures, bonds and other debt inStruments, The Company invests s surplus funds in bank fixed deposit
and in mutual funds, which carries no or low market risk,

The Company manilars it fisk of a shortaoe of lunds on a reaular basis. The Comoany's olieclhive is o maintsin a alance hetween
The following table shows a maturity analysis of the anticipated cash llows including interest obligations for the Company's financial

lahilities on an undiscounted basis, which therefore differ from both carrying value and fair value. Floating rate interest is estimated wsing
the prevailing interest rate at the end of the reporting period.

(Rs.)
[

Particulars 0-1 year 1to 5 years > 5 years Tata
March 31, 2018

Borrowings {other than convertible preference shares) 4,100,000 20,500,000 34,000,000 58,600,000
Gther financial liabilities 109 %42 - 109,347
Trade payables - -
Total 4,209,942 20,500,000 34,000,000 58,709,942
March 31, 2017

Borrowings (other than convertible preference shares) 4,100,000 20,500,000 38,100,000 62,700,000
Other financial liabilities 135,431 - - 135,431
Trade payables - - - -
Total 4,235,431 20,500,000 38,100,000 62,835,431

{i) The above exciudes any financial liabilities arising out of financial guarantes contract

Excessive risk concentration

Concentrations arise when @ number of counterparties are engaged in similar business activities, or activities in the same geographical
region, or have economic features that would cause their ability to mest contractual ebligations to be similarly affected by changes in
economic, politcal or other conditions. Concentrations indicate the relabive sensitivity of the Company's performance to developments
affecting & parlicular industry,

In order to avoid excessive concentrations of risk, the policies and procedures of the Company include specific guidelines to focus on the
mainkenance of a diversified portfiolio. Tdentified concentrations of credit nsks are controlled and managed accordingly,

o
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GMR Rajam Solar Power Private Limited

(Formerly known as GMR Uttar Pradesh Energy Private Limited)
MNotes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

34 Capital management

The Company's capital management is intended Lo create value Tor sharehalders by Tacilitating the meeting of long-term and

short-term goals of the Company.

The Company determines the amount of capital required on the basic of annual business plan coupled with long-term and
short-term strategic investment and expansion plans. The funding needs are met through equity, cash generated from
operations and sale of certain assets, long-term and short-term bank borrowings and issue of non-convertible [/ convertinle

debl securities and strategic partnership with investars,

For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, convertible preference share,
share premium and all other equity reserves attributable to the equity helders of the Company.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in fight of changes in economic conditions and the
requirements of the financial covenants. To maintaln or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the dividend
payment to sharehalders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The Company monitors capital using 2 gearing
ratio, which s total debt divided by total capital phes total debt, The Company’s policy Is to keep the gearing ratio at an

optimum level to ensure that the debk related covenant are complied with,

[Rs. in crore)

Farticulars

March 31, 2018

March 31, 2017

Borrawings other than convertible preference shares {refer notes 19 and 24)
Total debt (i}

Capital components

Equity share capital

Other equity

Total Capital (ii)

Capital and borrowings ( iii =i +ii )

Gearing ratio (%) (i /f iii )

39,363,064 58,034,861
| 30.363.064 | 58,034,861
100,000 100,000
10,841,332 i6,269,970) |
10,941,332 (6,169,970}
50,304,396 51,864,891
78.25% 111.90%

In order to achieve this averall objective, the Company’™s capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it
meets financial covenants attached to the interest-bearing loans and borrowings that define capital structure requirements.
Breaches in meeting the financial covenants would permit the bank ta immediately call loans and borrowings. There have been
ne material breaches in the financial covenants of any Interest-bearing leans and borrowings in the current peried.

L

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the years ended March 31, 2018

and March 31, 2017,

02,
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GMR Rajam Solar Power Private Limited
{Formerly known as GMR Uttar Pradesh Encergy Private Limited)
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

New Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) issued but not yet effective

Ind AS 115 "Revenue from Contracks with Customers” was notified on 28 March 2018 and establishes a five-step model to aceount Tor revenoe
arising from contracts with customers, Under Ind A% 115, revenus is recognised at an amaount that reflects the consideration to which an

The new revenue standard will supersede all corrent revenue recognition requirements under Ind AS. This new standard requires revenus to
Le recognized when promised goods or services are transferred Lo customers in amounts that reflect the consideration to which the Company
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. Adoption of the new rules could affect the timing of revenue recognition for
certain transactions of the Company., Ind AS 115 is effective for the Company in the first quartar of fiscal 2019 and permits two possible
methods of transition:

(1] retrospectively to each prior reporting period presented in accordance with Ind AS 8 Accounting Policies, Changas in Actounting Estimates
ang Ervovs o with the option to elect certain practical expedients as defined within Ind A5 115 (the full retrospective methed); or

(i} retrospectively with the cumulative effect of initially applying Ind AS 115 recognized at the date of initial application {1 April 2018) and
providing certain additional disclosures as defined in Ind A5 115 (the modified retrospective method].

The Group continues to evaluate the available transition methods and its contractual arrangements. The ultimale impact on revenue resulting
from the application of Ind AS 115 will be subject to assessments that are dependent on many variables, including, but not limited to, the
Lerms of the contractual arrangements and the mix of busingss, The Company's considerations alse include, but are not imited Lo, the
comparability of its financial statements and the comparability within its industry from application of the new standard to its contractual
arrangements. The Company has established an implementation beam to implement Ind AS 115 related to the recognition of revenoe from
cantracts with customers and it continues to evaluate the changes Lo accounting system and processes, and additional disclosure
rENIIFEMANTS ThAT mAy he nereesan.

Upon adoption the Company expects there to be a change in the manner that variable consideration in certain revenue arrangements is
recognized from the current practice of recognizing such revenue as the services are performed and the variable consideration is earned to
estimating the achievabifity of the varable conditions when the Company begins defivering services and recognizing that amaount gver the
contractual period, The Company also expects a change in the manner that it recognizes certain inoremental and fulfilment costs from
expensing them as incurred to deferring and recognizing them gver the contractual period. A reliable estimate of the quantitative impact of
Ind AS 115 on the financial statements will only be possible once the implemeantation project has been completad.

Amandments to Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) issued but not yet effective
The amendments to standards that are issued, but not yet effective, up to the date of issuance of the financial statements are disclosed
beiow. The Company intends to adopt these standards, if applicable, when they become effective.

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) has issued the Companies (Indian Accounting Standords) Amendment Rules, 2017 and Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2018 amending the following standard:

Amendments to Ind AS 12 - Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealised Losses

The amendments clanfy that an entity needs to consider whether tax law restricts the sources of taxable profics against which it may make
deductions on the reversal of that deductible temporary difference. Furthermore, the amendments provide guidance on how an entity should
determine future taxable profits and explain the circumstances in which taxable profit may inclede the recovery of some assets for more than
theEir Carrying amount,

Entities are required to apply the amendments retrospectively. However, on initial application of the amendments, the change in the opening
equity of the earfiest comparative period may be recognised in opening retained samings [or i another component of equity, as
appropriate], without allecating the change between apening retained eamings and other components of equity. Entities applying this relief
must disclose that fact.

Thege amendments pre efective for anneal periods beginning on or after 1 April 2018, These amendments are not expected to have any
impact on the company as the company has no deductible temporary differences or assets that are in the scope of the amendments.
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Appendix B to Ind AS 21 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration

The Appendix clarilies that, in determining the spot exchange rate to use on initial recognition ol Lhe related asset, expense or income ]
part of it) on the derecognition of a non-monetary asset or non-monetary lability relating to advance consideration, the date of the
transaction is the date on which an enbity initizlly recegnises the non-monetary assel or non-maonetary fiability arising from the advance
consideration. Il there arpe multiple payments or receipts in advance, then the entity must determme the transaction date for each payment or
receipt of advance consideration.

Entities may apply the Appendix requirements on a fully retrospective basis. Alternatively, an entity may apply these requirements
prospectively to all assets, expenses and income in its scope that are initially recognised on or aftber:
(i} The beginning of the reporting penod in which the entity first applies the Appendix, or

(i) The beginning of & prior reporting period presented as comparative information in the financial statements of the reporting perlnd in
which the entity first applies the Appandix.

The appendix is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2018, However, since the Company's current practice is in ling with
the Interpretation, the Company does not expect any effect on its financlal statements.

The Previous year's figures have been re-grouped and reclassified, wherever necessary, to confirm to those of current year.
For Girish Murthy & Kumar For and on behalfl of the Board of directors of
Chartered Accountants GMR Rajam Solar Power Private Limited
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P ir Kumar A
Majumdar Ranjit Singh Matharoo

Directar Directar
DIN:D3519200 DIN:07617929

AN Satish Kumar

Partner
Membership Number ; 26526
Firm Registration Number: 000934

Place: Mew Delhi Place: New Delhi
Date: 18th April, 2018 Date: 18th April, 2018
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